

CURTIN UNIVERSITY HOCKEY CLUB

ANNUAL REPORT SEASON 2022



Contents

Curtin University Hockey Club	3
Life Members	3
Office Bearers	3
Executive Committee	3
Operational Committee	4
Award Winners	4
Club Awards	4
Women's Best and Fairest	5
Men's Best and Fairest	5
Junior's Best and Fairest	5
Special Awards & Achievements	6
President's Report	6
Financial Report	9
Curtin Liaison Report	11
Membership and Recruitment Director's Report	12
Teams Director's Report	13
Representative Honours	14
Functions and Events	17
Women's League Tables	18
Men's League Tables	20
Junior's League Tables	22
Minkey	23



Curtin University Hockey Club

Life Members

From all previous Club identities:

Trinity (Men)	Pirates (Women)	Curtin Trinity Tigers
(1941-1990)	(1931-1990)	(1991 -1997)
1964 Maurice McGovern*	Pat Goodridge*	1991 Ross Theobald
1968 Harold Thornton*	Phoebe Bradshaw*	1997 Glen Emslie
1969 Eric Pearce	Shirley Davies	1997 Mark Kendle
1972 Gordon Pearce		
1973 Ron Walker	Aquinians Pirates	Curtin Trinity Pirates
1975 Jim O'Hara	(1990-1997)	(1998-2016)
1975 W (Bill) Connaughton	Elspeth Denning	1998 Troy Kelly
1976 JW (Bill) Andrew		1998 Ian Pestana
1976 John Metcalf	WAIT	2006 Lorraine Brown
1976 Julian Pearce	P Mason	2009 Michelle Hager
1979 John Hegge*	J Chapman	2013 Julie Branley
1982 Harry Duncan*	M Joynes	2014 Dennis Reid
1989 Kevin Martin*	Glenda Scott	2015 Richard Moore
1990 John Andrew		2016 Ian Kealley

^{*}Deceased

Office Bearers

Executive Committee

President: Tom Reid

Vice President: Julie Branley

Secretary: Lorraine Brown

Treasurer: Matt Mercer

Ordinary Committee

Teams Director: Elspeth Denning

Events Director: Meredith Kelly

Membership & Recruitment Director: Tony Ziegelaar

Curtin Liaison: Amy Woodfield



Operational Committee

Men's Coordinator: Jonah Powell

Women's Coordinator: Julie Doyle

Junior Coordinator: Amy Woodfield

Masters Coordinator: Ian Pestana

Umpiring Coordinator: vacant

Sponsorship Coordinator: Tom Reid

Governance Coordinator: Julie Branley

Database Administrator: Adam Piggott

Website Coordinator: Adam Piggott

Equipment & Merchandise Coordinator: Meredith Kelly

Clubroom Coordinator: vacant

Fundraising Coordinator: Jackie Stacey

Social Media Coordinator: Chloe DeGrussa

Award Winners

Club Awards

- Elspeth Denning Award-Junior Player Showing Potential: Cooper Stephens
- Most Improved Female: Brooke Kenny
- Most Improved Male: Sam Rose
- Coach of the Year: Julie Branley
- Best Club Person: Meredith Kelly
- Michelle Hager Award-Highest Women's Goal Scorer: Terry McHale 9 goals
- Mick Waddell Award-Highest Men's Goal Scorer: Rhys Angwin 17 goals
- Men's Goalkeeper of the Year: Ken O'Driscol
- Women's Goalkeeper of the Year: Maria Wainwright
- Best Team: Masters Women O/35 Div 4 (Premiers)



- Presidents Award: Peter Rhouliadeff
- Pat Goodridge Award for Services to the Club: Lorraine Brown & Tom Reid

Women's Best and Fairest

Team	MVP	Runner Up MVP	
Premier 1	Kirstie Denning	Kate Denning	
Premier 2	Erica Rojas Wood	Emily Hindle	
Division 4	Jasmyne Paul	Sarah Wainwright	
Division 6	Brooke Millar	Nadia Dry	
Division 7	Isolina Caracciolo Jaimee Hadley	-	
Division 8	Tahlia Cross	Tiffany Engelev	
Division 9	Kate Ellement	Tara Tomlinson	
Metro 4	Michaela Dowdell	Larissa Cooper	
Master's O/35 Div3	Kate Hollick	Eleanor Staples	

Men's Best and Fairest

Team	MVP	Runner Up MVP	
Premier 1	Henry Chambers	Isaac Temby	
Premier 3	Glenn Norris	Tom Forrest	
		Rhys Angwin	
Division 5	Jayden Hart	Lachlan Harrington	
Division 7	Lewis Cann	Christopher Kain	
Division 8	Simon Kent	Daniel Collins	
Division 9	Kalwant Singh	Gurdeep Singh	
Master's O/60 Div 1	Maurice Giles	Kalwant Singh	

Junior's Best and Fairest

_									
Team									
J11/12 Div 3girls	MVP		Coach	Coaches Award		Best Team Mate Award			
	Skye Celedin		Eloise	Edm	nan Zo		Zoè Fenner		
J9/10 Div 5 girls	MVP Most Prom		nising	Mos	st Consistent		Coaches Award		
	Zoe Higgie	gie Emily Fuge Iso		Isob	el Harfoucl	l Harfouche Ma		adison Bourne	
J7/8 Div 5 girls	= MVP = MV		'P		Most Promising		g	Most Improved	
	Molly Palermo Zoe H		liggie		Bella Fenandez Ric		Riddhi Roy		
J5/6 Div 4 girls	MVP		Most	Impro	oved	Мо	st [Dedicated	
	Eva Kelly			Lydia	Boust	field	Ste	pha	anie Burton
J5/6 Div 5 boys	Coaches Award					Most Imp	rove	d	
	Callan Green					Vincent B	uckle	₉ y	
Minkey	Participation	Participation medals di			d to a	all players			



Special Awards & Achievements

Hockey WA Award of Merit - Julie Branley

Curtin University Sports Awards:

John Curtin Award For Positive Change – Curtin University Hockey Club

Sports Star of the Year Female Competition – Winner: Kaitlin Nobbs

Volunteer of the Year Award - Finalist: Amy Woodflied

Curtin Colours – Sarah Byrnes awarded Half Blues

President's Report

Season 2022 was the first time that we as a hockey community were faced with participating in a competition while COVID-19 transmission was live in the community.

In previous seasons we had seen competition start and stop around lockdowns, whereas this year saw Hockey WA publish a set of rules specifically aimed to see the season run while the virus was spreading in the community. This certainly presented its challenges with respect to weekly team selection and player availability; I'd like to thank you all, our membership, for your resilience and the patience shown throughput this season.

As a club, despite the covid effected seasons of the recent past, we managed to grow from last season, bringing on an additional women's metro side and bolstering our junior participation.

Of particular note, it was great to see us nominate both junior boys and girls in the 5/6 competition and deliver our own Minkey program for the first time in a number of years. Thanks to all our junior coaches and in particular to Amy and Lorraine for their hard work in this space.

From 16 senior teams, we had 4 senior sides make finals, 1 participating in a grand final, for 1 premiership – this is an improvement on finals participation from last season, but certainly an area of growth available to us. As a club I'd like to see us really continue to strive for excellence in the coming seasons.

This season we saw the development of our first indigenous playing uniform. The requirement for a premier league clash strip has been written into the competition rules for a number of years and is being mandated by Hockey WA from next season onwards. We took the opportunity to engage with long time club member and contemporary Noongar artist Jarni McGuire and develop the Navy uniform you will have seen our premier league playing in. As a committee we wanted the development of this to be more than a uniform and be a launching pad for us to start developing more tangible



reconciliation outcomes, and so as part of the uniform launch we were proud to release a club's Reconciliation Statement. It reads:

Curtin University Hockey Club are committed to reconciliation and strengthening respectful relationships with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.

Reconciliation begins with actions in our daily lives; where we live, work, socialise and where we play our sport.

As part of this initiative part proceeds from our Supporter polo sales will be donated to an indigenous charity. We hope our membership is proud of the uniform and the position the club is taking with respect to reconciliation within our community and we thank Curtin University and the Town of Victoria Park for their contributions towards the artwork and the development of the uniform.

With the borders back open again, our Premier league sides were bolstered by the arrival of imports from interstate and overseas. This resulted in improved performance from our top sides, however the competitiveness of the premier league division in both genders continues to increase year on year.

I'd like to take a moment to thank all of those who assisted in providing accommodation and transport to the imports this season:

- Owen Clark and Shannon Koch;
- Elspeth and Grant Denning;
- Rhys Angwin and family;
- Cooper Littlefair and parents;
- Isaac Temby; and
- Andrew Cathie.

We made a conscious effort to celebrate our premier league milestones this season. No doubt you would have seen the coverage on our social media and Hockey WA's about the milestones of Tanya, Kate, Chani and Kirstie. We are keen to expand this to all our teams moving forward but will need some support from the membership to fill in the gaps in the available information from Hockey WA. So look out for RFI's from the committee to help us in this recognition space.

We again had members selected in State and National sides, from the under 21s through to the Over 70's and the Hockey One League. A full list of our representatives is available in this report.

The hockey calendar was punctuated by the Commonwealth Games and Women's World Cup, and we were lucky enough to have a healthy cohort of our own home-grown players and Hockey Australia draftees show their wares on the global stage. They were Kaitlin Nobbs, Penny Squibb, Greta Hayes and Meg Pearce. On the men's side we had the NSW pair of Dylan Martin and Ky Willott. While Ky and Dyl weren't part of the Commonwealth Games squad I know our Premier league men benefitted from their availability throughout the season.

As always, we managed to fill a wide variety of volunteer positions, so a special thank you to all those who not only chose to play hockey, but took on additional roles this year. In particular:

- To everyone who coached and managed a side this year, a massive thank-you.
- Jacqui Stacey, for organising no less than 4 bunnings sausage sizzles!
- Steph Birch, Chloe DeGrussa and Amy Woodfield Social Media;
- Ian Pestana Masters Coordinator;



Jonah Powell, Julie Doyle – Men's and Women's Coordinators;

Executive Committee

- Meredith Kelly (aka Red) Picking up Events Director in addition to the Equipment and Merchandise role she commenced last year;
- Tony Zeigelaar Membership and Recruitment;
- Amy Woodfield Curtin Liaison in addition to the Junior Coordinator role she has been delivering for a number of seasons;
- Elspeth Denning Teams Director;
- Matt Mercer Treasurer;
- Lorraine Brown Secretary;
- Julie Branley VP and Governance;

Volunteers are the life blood of clubs like ours, so please, if you think you are able to help out, in any way, shape or form, please put your hand up and jump on board in an executive committee or subcommittee role next year. Our ability to deliver the best possible hockey experience for our members is limited by the size of our volunteer base, so the more volunteer positions we are able to fill, the better the club will become.

As a community club, sponsorship is critical for our success, and particularly with respect to maintaining our ability to field premier teams whilst also ensuring we can support all grades. Our sincere thanks go to:

- Ian Keally Thermal Airconditioning;
- Darryl Andrews Cambridge Periodontics;
- Grant and Elspeth Denning Denning and Associates;
- Republic of Hockey;
- Plunkett Homes;
- Town of Victoria Park;
- Curtin University / Curtin Stadium;
- Ken O'Driscoll Pancho's Mexican Villa;
- Freedom Physiotherepy;
- The Balmoral; and
- Swansea Street Butchers.

Playing a season of hockey, the games, training and non-playing related activities, whether it be committee service or socializing is not an insignificant time commitment, so I'd like to take a moment to thank the partners and families of our players who allow us to take a break from our home lives to play the sport we all love.

I hope everyone has a safe and happy off-season. Try to stay connected with your team mates and let's make sure we are all back, fit and healthy to take on season 2023.



Financial Report

Profit and loss

Curtin University Hockey Club
Curtin Stadium Building 111 Curtin University Kent St, Bentley WA 6102, Australia

Accrual mode 01 Nov 2021 - 31 Oct 2022 ABN: 22925424622 Generated 10 Nov 2022

		Tota
Income		
4-1000	Senior Subscriptions	89,139.9
4-1001	Junior Subscriptions	12,009.00
4-1003	Sponsorship	14,796.14
4-1004	Grant Funding	8,900.0
4-1008	Club Raffle	439.0
4-1009	Great Southern Hockey Carnival	5,130.0
4-1010	Quiz Night	1,905.18
4-1011	End of Season Awards Night	10,200.00
4-1012	Bar Sales	1,557.5
4-1013	Bunnings Fundraising	6,949.0
4-1014	Merchandise	2,239.94
4-1015	HWA Special Match Play & Adjustments	3,400.00
4-1019	Premier League Uniforms	1,770.00
Total Income		158,435.78

5-1018	Bar Purchases	231.9
5-1020	Merchandise	4,132.2
5-1022	Social Events	236.0
5-1024	End of Season Awards Night	10,717.7
5-1025	Bunnings Fundraising	2,145.3
otal Cost of Sales		17,463.2

Less Expense		
6-1030	Accounting/Bookkeeping Fees	600.00
6-1032	Club Days	200.00
6-1036	HWA Affiliation Fees	51,114.80
6-1037	Coaching	27,250.00
6-1039	Equipment	2,757.51
6-1042	Uniforms	16,139.90
6-1044	Game Hire - PHS	1,560.00
6-1045	Games Hire - Others	115.00
6-1046	Grass Hire - Curtin	2,802.50
6-1047	Turf Hire	42,021.67

Total Expense		163,872.75
6-1053	Import Player Expenses	6,366.4
6-1052	Player Recruitment/Retention	7,404.0
6-1051	Refunds	2,453.7
6-1049	Great Southern Hockey Carnival	3,087.2

Plus Other Income		
4-1017	Interest Income	27.04
4-1018	Overpayments	0.00
Total Other Income		27.04

Less Other Expense	
Total Other Expense	0.00
Net Profit	-22,873.20



Balance Sheet

Curtin University Hockey Club Curtin Stadium Building 111 Curtin University Kent St, Bentley WA 6102, Australia Accrual mode 31 Oct 2022 ABN: 22925424622 Generated 10 Nov 2022

		Total
Asset		
Banking		
1-1051	Fees Account 0377954	25,891.74
1-1052	Telenet Saver - 107069-0	18,065.66
Total Banking		43,957.40
Current Assets		
1-5000	Trade Debtors	7,957.83
Total Current Assets		7,957.83
Fixed Assets		
Total Fixed Assets		0.00
Total Asset		51,915.23
Liability		
Current Liabilities		
2-1000	Trade Creditors	-269.98
Total Current Liabilities		-269.98
Long Term Liabilities		
Total Long Term Liabilities		0.00
Total Liability		-269.98
Net Assets		52,185.21
Net Assets		32,103.21
Equity		
Current Earnings		
3-9000	Current Year Earnings	-22,873.20
Total Current Earnings		-22,873.20
Retained Earnings		
3-8000	Retained Earnings	75,058.41
Total Retained Earnings		75,058.41
Total Equity		52,185.21



Curtin Liaison Report

Fields update

Stemming from feedback received from grass players at the 2021 AGM, we took it as a priority to improve our grass playing fields on Edinburgh South Oval, Curtin University. In early 2022, prior to the start of the 2022 Winter Season we met with Curtin Sport and Recreation staff to raise our concerns and work together to improve the surface. To Curtin Sport and Recreation's credit, they were very receptive to our feedback and worked with us to set up a more regular time line for line marking and mowing of the grounds throughout the season.

This year, Curtin University continued to use the space for outdoor events like Orientation Day, Open Day and Graduation Ceremonies. Unfortunately, following these types of events, the grounds were in quite poor condition and the club decided to approach the Vice Chancellor to raise our concerns higher in the university. CUHC President Tom Reid met with the Chief Operating Officer to raise the club's concerns. We agreed that where possible, Edinburgh South Oval will not be used for events during the regular winter season, and where it had to be used, marquees and tents are to be positioned on areas away from the playing field itself.

We continue to work with the university to improve the fields and are happy to see that the grounds are beginning to improve.

Storage Update

This year, I have been working toward re-gaining storage at Curtin Stadium or Perth Hockey Stadium. Space at PHS is limited, but thankfully, we have gained storage in the Sea Container at Edinburgh South Oval. This space is currently set up to storage junior equipment; however, there may be opportunity in the future to expand this for storage of senior equipment. CUHC has exclusive use of this container for 1 year, until October 2023.

Curtin University Student Sport Advisory Council

Curtin University has recently formed a Student Sport Advisory Council (CUSSAC) of which I am a founding member. The council consists of eight (8) students from a range of sporting backgrounds including social sports, clubs, representative sport and elite athletes. The formation of this council is a big step in the right direction to advocate for the importance of sport to the broader university experience for students. The key portfolios created by the council are:

- Elite Athletes
- Representative Sports
- Clubs
- Intramural (interfaculty & interhouse)
- Social Sports and Fitness
- Curtin Alumni Connection
- Uniform and Branding
- Marketing and Communications



I am currently the lead on the Clubs and Curtin Alumni Connection portfolios. This is a great opportunity for Curtin University students at the club who are passionate about sport on campus to get involved. We are always looking for potential new members to join projects of the council itself, please get in touch if this is something you would like to do.

Membership and Recruitment Director's Report

2022 was a fantastic growth year for the club with memberships at 382 up from 2021's recorded 318 registrations showing a fantastic growth year for the club. The club memberships percentages can be seen in the table below with still a strong proportion of student members and a growing junior presence at the club.

Memberships	% of total membership
Curtin Student	24%
Curtin Staff	1%
Curtin Alumni	12%
Community	39%
Junior	25%

Again, we had some strong interest from university students with many enquiries about the club as well as university sport. We had a large number of our student members representing the university in both women's and men's teams continuing our strong connection with Curtin and achieving the best Curtin finish with a 5th place division 1 women's and gold medal division 1's men's. As usual Curtin was glad of our support, and we also have had a number of students from other clubs at various levels interested in joining Curtin next year.

We proposed an "Into the Future" plan last year focusing on premier league recruitment with a focus on finding coaches willing to stay multiple seasons and with a drive to push our top squads to perform better. This was successful in finding committed coaches with positive feedback from the squads for the head coaches on both sides of the club on their coaching styles and performance for the year.

Curtin Affiliation Recommendations:

- Tavern events are a good fundraiser as well as getting the Pirates club name out maybe try
 to build a student fanbase with such an event
- Physiotherapy: Students are always looking to get experience for next season we need to use this resource; along with Exercise Physiologists at Curtin
- Using University games as a recruitment/advertisement of the club by increasing and maintaining our support

Club Recommendations:

Junior Team Ambassadors:

 Premier league Players attending some games and trainings to build a senior-junior connection



• Summer camp

- Building on creating a connection for juniors to seniors it has been expressed by some members of a summer camp for junior talent/all talent to develop and provide opportunities to develop for our members
- This provides better club unity and a more friendly club all round with the added bonus of developing youth for high level hockey in their future

• Umpire Mentoring Programs

- O Junior's (and seniors in future) allocated to Senior's to watch and help umpire
- The learner umpire gets paired up with an experienced mentor
- The experienced mentor umpires JUNIOR matches on either Saturday or Sunday morning with the learner running alongside.
- After 3-4 matches observing, roles reverse & the learner blows the whistle with the mentor running alongside
- Once comfortable, the mentor eventually sits on the sideline observing & giving advice in the breaks.
- Ultimately leading to the completion of their Umpiring level 1

Indoor Hockey

Look into indoor hockey and supporting a team to expand the club playing options

Teams Director's Report

Due to covid hitting us for the first time and players being able to travel after many years, our player depth was severely tested. This was probably one of the most difficult years I have ever encountered, spending hours and hours each week trying to find players.

Many teams throughout the season, especially on the women's side, were very depleted from Prem 1s down to div 9, sometimes having to play with 11 or less players.

To all the coaches and managers thank you again for all your support, time and effort you put into your teams and the club. It is most appreciated..

I would like to thank all the co-ordinators – Johan Powell (Men's Coordinator), Julie Doyle (Women's Coordinator), Amy Woodfield (Junior Coordinator) along with Lorraine Brown and finally Lorraine Brown & Ian Pestana (Masters Coordinator's) for the work they have put into season 2022. An amazing job done by all

We wish all members a Happy Xmas and New Year and hopefully will see you all back for season 2023

Team	Result	Coach/s	Manager
Premier League Women	7 th	Matt Bird/Kate Starre	Elspeth Denning
Premier League Men	12 th	Marc Pike	Owen Clark
Premier Div 2 Women	10 th	Adam Piggott	Erica Rojas Wood
Premier Div 3 Men	4th (Semi)	Julie Branley	N/A
Division 4 Women	9 th	Amy Woodfield	Fiona De Courcier
Division 5 Men	7 th	Justin Pavlinovich	Aaron Breen
Division 6 Women	5 th	Ian Pestana	Tamara Watts
Division 7 Men	6 th	Lewis Cann & Jaryd Tacken	Jaryd Tacken
Division 7 Women (Gold)	7 th	Emily Wallis	Isolina Caracciolo
Division 8 Men (Gold)	3 rd (Prelim)	Peter Rhouliadeff & Ken O'Driscoll	David Hoye



Division 8 Women (Gold)	8 th	Rachel Porter	Gaby Hinchcliffe
Division 9 Women (Gold)	9 th	Tina Townrow	Tara Tomlinson
Division 9 Men (Gold)	9 th	Gurmeet Singh	Jeevan Glenn Joseph
Metro 4	3 rd (Prelim)	n/a	Julie Doyle
O/35 Div 4 Women	2 nd (Premiers)	n/a	Jackie Stacey
O/60 Div 1 Men	6 th	Dudley Evans & Ian Pestana	Richard Moore
J11/12 Div 3 Girls	5 th	Hannah Cinanni & Jess Leng	Nola Fenner
J9/10 Div 5 Girls	6 th	Jacob Nenke	Naomi Newton
J7/8 Div 5 Girls	8 th	Lorraine Brown	Lisa Fernandez
J5/6 Div 4 Girls	6 th	Hayley Smith & Amy Woodfield	Louise Orlando
J5/6 Div 5 Boys	7 th	Cooper Littlefair & Jonah Powell	Dagmara Buckley
Minkey	-	Caitlin Reynolds & Jasmyn Paull	

Representative Honours

AUSTRALIAN REPRESENTATIVES

World Cup: (Netherlands & Spain - Bronze medalists)
Greta Hayes, Kaitlin Nobbs, Meg Pearce (inj) Penny Squibb
Commonwealth Games (Birminham – Silver medalists)
Greta Hayes, Kaitlin Nobbs, Penny Squibb

AUSTRALIAN SQUAD:

Greta Hayes, Dylan Martin, Kaitlin Nobbs, Meg Pearce, Penny Squibb, Ky Willott

AUSTRALIAN JUNIOR SQUAD (Jillaroos): Evelyn Dalton

WAIS: Sarah Byrnes, Penny Squibb

U/21: (Tasmania) Evelyn Dalton

U/18: Ana Cana, Cooper Stephens (Train-on)

NATIONAL HOCKEY ONE SQUADS:

WA Thundersticks - Sarah Byrnes, Kate Denning, Penny Squibb NSW Pride – Alice Arnott, Greta Hayes, Dylan Martin, Ky Willett Brisbane Blaze – Meg Pearce TassieTigers – Henry Chambers, Evelyn Dalton

WA State Masters:

O/55 Nick Hyde, O/65 Keith Gilbride, Flear

O/65 Keith Gilbride, Eleanor Staples, Tony Watkins, Mike Waite (Manager)

O/70 Dudley Evans

Women's Coordinator's Review

What a great year, 2022!

Again, this year was a tough one with COVID. Although no lockdowns we were certainly plagued with sickness and short players across all the women's teams. Thank you to every one of you for working hard just so teams could play games. This year we welcomed the metro team (grass) back to the club and what a success it was! We had 8 teams with several new players welcomed to the club.



All teams displayed promising development and commitment. This year all teams were moved up a grade which gave many players the opportunity for skill development in an exciting atmosphere for friendships with new and returning players.

We congratulated Greta Hayes, Meg Pearce, Penny Squibb and Kaitlin Knobbs who represented Australia at the international level, and not to forget this year Sarah Byrnes, Kate Denning and Penny Squibb represented CUHC in the Perth Thundersticks. Ana Cana also participating in the U18's National Tournament, congrats.

Our Premier 1 team overall achieved 5 wins and 3 draws for the season. The Premier 2's finished the season with 1 win and 1 draws. It was a tough year for our Premier 1's and 2's finishing outside the finals in 7th and 10th place, respectively.

It was a thrill to watch the Women's Metro and Master's team throughout the season. The Metro team progressed through to semi and preliminary finals. They ended the season with a 0-2 Loss against NC Raiders in the preliminary final, placed 3rd overall for the season. The Masters team finished 2nd progressed through to win the semi then ended the season with a 2-1 win against OGMHC in the Grand final. The only Premiership for the club this season.

I wanted to say a big thank you to all of the players who took to the field this year. It was great to see you all out there enjoying your hockey and forming great bonds within your teams. Also thank you for your patience and cooperation with me as I become a mother and decided to take on the role of Women's Coordinator. Sadly, I won't be returning as I'm moving to the South West but wish you all the best of luck.

I would also like to thank all of the Women's coaches and managers this year across all grades, without your support and the hours you volunteer, the teams and the club itself would not achieve the results that it does. We look forward to 2023 and the continued growth of women's hockey at Pirates.

Men's Coordinator's Review

2022 was an eventful year that saw many individual and team successes in the men's competitions. The effort and improvement displayed by our men's teams both on and off the field was commendable.

2022 provided our hockey club with many new opportunities. At a premier league level, the reintroduction of import players saw our men's team benefit from the experience and talent of 3 overseas players. The absence of the Olympics also enabled both the premier league men's and women's competitions to benefit from the increased presence of our AIS players. The efforts of the men's division one team were reflected in their results, as although they finished last, they were able to halve their goal difference and claim three wins in comparison to none from the previous season. The division three team also improved their standings, making the finals this season and unfortunately being knocked out in the first round. Both teams will look to build on this improvement in the future, with preseason already underway for the 2023 season.

As for the lower grade men's teams, we saw the introduction of a 6th men's team this year, as well as our first junior boys' team in over 10 years. the division 8's once again progressed to the second round of the finals while other teams such as the division 7 team also experienced success, finishing high on the table. However, the most promising aspect of the 2022 season was the engagement



from the men's side of the club. With membership increasing drastically from last year, we were able to expand our hockey community and provide opportunities to a lot more people, something that we aim to build upon in the coming years.

This increased membership also contributed towards a growing club culture. This growth was cultivated by multiple social events throughout the 2022 season such as the country trip, quiz night and presentation evening at the Camfield. These events provided ample opportunities for social integration between the teams, and I would like to thank all committee members and volunteers for their efforts in making these events possible.

Finally, my gratitude is extended to all the coaches and managers for their help throughout the 2022 season. From running training sessions to helping with team selections, the work of these people was imperative for the success that the club experienced throughout this year. I am additionally thankful for the assistance provided by multiple committee members. This assistance facilitated the social and competitive growth experienced by the club this year, setting the club on the right path for success in the years to come.

Master's Coordinator's Review

This year we had only O/60 Div 1 men's side as the O/50 Div 2 wanted to play on turf, in hindsight this was a good decision as we did not lose any players. The O/60 team was led by Dudley Evans and Ian Pestana with Richard Moore as manager. A special thanks to these three players for keeping our team on the park. The only recruits we had were Chris Dunning and Kalwant Singh. It wasn't a very successful year playing wise as the team finished last but with only two new recruits this season we hope to get a few more younger players to steady the ship in 2023. Social events were very good for team bonding.

A special thanks to our sponsors who play in our team and thanks to our President for getting Edinburgh oval to a very good standard for us to play on.

One year older but it didn't stop our women's O/35 Div team (with an actual average age of 52.4!!) finishing in second place, winning the semi and then back to back Premierships. Having fun and team bonding is a highlight of playing in the Masters team and with the youngest team member leaving us to go East for a year or two, we are looking for new members to bring that average age down again!

Junior Coordinator Review

Winter Season

We are very happy to share that our junior sector continues to grow, welcoming near 100 junior players to CUHC. We began our own Minkey program at Edinburgh South oval on Saturday mornings, special thanks to Jasmyne Paull and Caitlin Reynolds for all their efforts coaching. We also welcomed the addition of our first junior boys' team in over a decade, starting in the J5/6 division 5, coached by Jonah Powell and Cooper Littlefair, they continued to improve week on week & we look forward to seeing them continue to progress. In addition, we had our J5/6 girls who continue to be superstars – the most coachable team I am yet to experience and thanks to Hayley Smith taking on this team.

In the high school age groups, we had three junior girls' teams, J7/8 division 5, J9/10 division 5 and J11/12 division 3. Thank you to Lorraine Brown, Jacob Nenke, Hannah Cinnani and Jess Leng for your



continued support and coaching of our junior teams, a fabulous job from all of you. Additional thanks go to all team managers and volunteer umpires whom without you, our competitions simply would not run.

Summer Season

Alongside WASPS and VPX, CUHC continue to offer Junior Summer Hockey at Perth Hockey Stadium over Term 1 and Term 4 each year. This is a great addition to the typical winter season competitions, with a fun focussed atmosphere, music playing, no scores kept – it's simply a great evening out for the whole family to enjoy. We are excited to see participation in the summer competitions also grow, also welcoming new players to the sport to have a go before the start of the winter season. A perfect way to try out our great game.

Summer School Program

Some COVID scares during Term 1 2022 put a dampener on our annual Summer Schools Program, though we did continue to deliver beginner hockey lessons to 57 primary school students across Millen Primary School, Aubin Grove Primary School and St Columba's Primary School. The Summer School Program is continuing currently at Millen Primary School with a program catering to 13 students. We are looking forward to another big Term 1 program ahead of the 2023 winter season.

Functions and Events

At the risk of sounding like a broken record, our CUHC social calendar was again impacted by COVID and the constant looming threat of lock downs, venue restrictions and mask wearing mandates. Thankfully, by mid-season we were starting to gain some sense of normalcy, just as we were all getting used to seeing one another's faces again.

Our partnership with Hockey WA and their continued support of the club using the Eastman Lounge at PHS as pseudo clubrooms meant we were able to hold several successful club days. These included family day, our Indigenous Uniform launch and several player milestone events. This is a tradition we are hoping to embrace in future seasons and we would like to encourage all members and supporters to utilise the venue on club days and events.

As always, the annual Quiz Night was a big success, with teams battling it out to take bragging rights for season 2022. With two teams tied on equal points after six rounds, this year's honour was awarded to the women's Vets team who flexed their muscles to win the tiebreaker in an arm wrestle. Thanks to several generous donations we were also able to incorporate a (not so) silent auction – with the highlight being a \$50.00 price tag on a singing pumpkin hat, absolute bargain if you ask me.

Our junior portfolio of events has been highlighted as an area of growth for season 2023. I would like to thank both Amy Woodfeild and Lorraine Brown for stepping up and putting on a great show for our Junior Windup, treating families to a BBQ and presentation ceremony by some of our current Olympians. We look forward to incorporating more junior events next season.



Finally, our end of season Awards Night held at the Camfield was a huge success. The opportunity to sit down to a meal during presentations proved popular with members, as was the inclusion of the photo booth by local business Just for Kicks. I am sure there were plenty of sore heads the next day, evidenced by the Camfield's need to source additional red cans for the event space mid-evening. On behalf of everyone involved in the preparation and planning of the evening, I would like to thank all those in attendance for being on their best pirate-like behaviour (Loud, slightly inebriated, but always polite).

Lastly, I would like to close out the role in season 2022 by putting out a call to arms for all pirate members, next year we want to grow the events portfolio. But in order to do so, we need your help! We need everyone to get on board, buy tickets to the events, advertise the events, but most importantly, have fun at the events!

Enjoy the off-season – bring on season 2023!

Women's League Tables

Premier Division 1 Women	<u>P</u>	W	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Hale	18	13	4	1	59	22	37	43	80
Westside Wolves	18	13	3	2	54	18	36	42	78
UWA	18	11	3	4	44	21	23	36	67
Vic Park	18	11	2	5	38	22	16	35	65
NC Raiders	18	7	4	7	32	40	-8	25	46
Lions	18	5	4	9	23	34	-11	19	35
Curtin University	18	5	4	10	26	40	-14	18	33
WASPS	18	4	4	11	22	37	-15	15	28
Reds	18	3	5	10	21	50	-29	14	26
Melville	18	2	1	15	18	53	-35	7	

Premier Division 2 Women	<u>P</u>	W	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Whitford	18	15	1	2	56	15	41	46	85
UWA 2	18	14	2	2	42	12	30	44	81
YMCC	18	14	1	3	49	18	31	43	80
Reds 2	18	8	6	4	31	14	17	30	56
Westside Wolves 2	18	6	4	8	27	32	-5	22	41
Lions 2	18	5	6	7	18	27	-9	21	39
Melville 2	18	5	5	8	20	24	-4	20	37
Vic Park 2	18	4	3	11	26	33	-7	15	28
NC Raiders 2	18	1	5	12	14	44	-30	8	15
Curtin University 2	18	1	1	16	9	73	-64	4	7



Division 4 Women	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Whitford 2	18	16	1	1	59	12	47	49	91
Uni Associates	18	13	4	1	63	16	47	43	80
Reds 3	18	13	2	3	51	14	37	41	76
YMCC 3	18	9	4	5	25	22	3	31	57
NC Raiders 3	18	9	1	8	42	40	2	28	52
Modernians	18	5	3	10	39	40	-1	18	33
Lions 3	18	4	4	9	23	36	-13	16	30
WASPS 3	18	4	2	12	21	43	-22	14	26
Curtin University 3	18	3	1	14	18	48	-30	10	19
Peel Rebels	18	3	0	15	17	87	-70	9	17

Division 6 (Gold) Women	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Vic Park 4	17	14	2	1	39	14	25	44	86
Whitford 3	12	9	1	2	25	10	15	28	78
UWA 5	17	12	3	2	61	29	32	39	76
Reds 5	17	10	5	2	36	19	17	35	69
Curtin University 4	17	7	1	9	22	27	-5	22	43
Uni Associates 3	18	6	1	10	26	41	-15	19	35
Hale 4	17	4	5	8	22	29	-7	17	33
Fremantle Cockburn 3	17	4	5	8	20	27	-7	17	33
Rockingham 2	18	2	3	11	11	40	-29	9	17
Lions 5	18	1	4	13	11	37	-26	7	13

Division 7 (Gold) Women	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Melville 5	18	14	3	1	36	8	28	45	83
Kalamunda	18	13	3	2	52	11	41	42	78
UWA 6	18	12	3	3	53	16	37	39	72
WASPS 4	18	12	2	4	41	18	23	38	70
Reds 6	18	9	3	6	36	22	14	30	56
Rockingham 3	18	5	1	12	25	30	-5	16	30
Curtin University 5	18	5	0	12	14	56	-42	15	28
Southern River 2	18	3	4	11	25	43	-18	13	24
Fremantle Cockburn 4	18	4	0	14	36	69	-33	12	22
Vic Park 5	18	3	1	14	11	56	-45	10	19

Division 8 (Gold) Women	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
UWA 9	16	16	0	0	105	5	100	48	100
WASPS 5	16	13	0	3	49	17	32	39	81
Kalamunda 2	16	9	2	5	52	19	33	29	60
Reds 7	16	7	2	6	14	26	-12	23	48
Southern River 3	16	4	6	6	25	35	-10	18	38
Melville 6	16	4	5	7	18	28	-10	17	35
Vic Park 6	16	3	2	11	14	57	-43	11	23
Curtin University 6	16	3	2	9	19	67	-48	11	23
Canning	16	2	3	10	19	61	-42	9	19



Division 9 (Gold) Women	<u>P</u>	W	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
UWA 10	18	15	1	2	46	12	34	46	85
WASPS 6	18	13	1	4	34	11	23	40	74
Melville 8	18	11	4	3	40	13	27	37	69
Kalamunda 3	18	8	8	2	22	6	16	32	59
Reds 8	18	9	2	8	22	15	7	29	54
Southern River 4	18	6	4	7	14	24	-10	22	41
Kwinana Tigers	18	4	4	10	8	32	-24	16	30
Kalamunda 4	18	3	4	11	11	26	-15	13	24
Curtin University 7	18	4	1	12	13	44	-31	13	24
Rockingham 4	18	1	3	13	13	40	-27	6	11

Metro 4 Women	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Ellenbrook Falcons 2	17	13	3	1	39	4	35	42	82
NC Raiders 6	18	11	2	5	28	12	16	36	67
Curtin University 8	17	10	3	3	38	14	24	33	65
Newman Knights 4	18	7	7	4	15	11	4	28	52
YMCC 6	18	7	2	9	19	18	1	23	43
Roleystone 2	18	6	2	10	11	25	-14	20	37
Westside Wolves 10	18	3	2	13	13	41	-28	11	20
Harlies 2	18	2	3	13	6	44	-38	9	17

O35 Division 4 Women	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
OGMHC	16	13	1	2	53	8	45	40	83
Curtin University (premiers)	16	8	4	4	30	16	14	28	58
Newman Knights 2	16	7	5	4	31	23	8	26	54
Hale 2	16	7	4	4	30	29	1	25	52
Modernians 2	16	5	5	6	16	20	-4	20	42
Southern River 2	16	5	2	8	20	34	-14	17	35
Fremantle Cockburn 4	16	5	1	10	18	38	-20	16	33
Joondalup Lakers	16	4	3	9	18	30	-12	15	31
Whitford 2	16	4	3	9	18	36	-18	15	31

Men's League Tables

Premier DivisPion 1 Men	<u>P</u>	W	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Melville	22	16	2	4	60	24	36	50	76
Reds	22	14	4	4	101	52	49	46	70
Hale	22	13	5	4	87	53	34	44	67
Vic Park	22	12	2	8	62	49	13	38	58
UWA	22	10	7	5	71	49	22	37	56
Fremantle Cockburn	22	11	4	7	65	44	21	37	56
Westside Wolves	22	11	4	7	58	52	6	37	56
YMCC	22	8	5	9	52	51	1	29	44
OGMHC	22	6	3	13	45	86	-41	21	32
WASPS	22	4	3	15	34	63	-29	15	23
Whitford	22	3	3	16	44	78	-34	12	18
Curtin University	22	3	0	19	35	113	-78	9	14



Premier Division 3 Men	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Rockingham	18	16	1	1	73	11	62	49	91
Vic Park 3	18	16	1	1	77	21	56	49	91
Melville 3	18	12	1	5	52	46	6	37	69
Curtin University 2	18	10	2	6	50	29	21	32	59
Newman Knights	18	8	3	7	38	32	6	27	50
Hale 3	18	7	3	7	33	41	-8	24	44
Joondalup Lakers	18	5	2	11	36	50	-14	17	31
OGMHC 2	18	4	0	14	18	60	-42	12	22
Lions 2	18	3	0	14	12	71	-59	9	17
Peel Rebels	18	2	1	15	20	48	-28	7	13

Division 5 Men	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Hale 4	18	16	1	0	77	31	46	49	91
Harlies	18	12	3	3	50	14	36	39	72
UWA 4	18	11	2	5	51	29	22	35	65
Melville 4	18	9	3	6	47	28	19	30	56
Joondalup Lakers 2	18	10	0	8	46	41	5	30	56
WASPS 4	18	8	3	7	32	27	5	27	50
Curtin University 3	18	5	2	11	26	41	-15	17	31
Whitford 3	18	5	0	13	24	59	-35	15	28
Newman Knights 2	18	3	2	13	23	58	-35	11	20
Ellenbrook Falcons	18	2	2	14	18	66	-48	8	15

Division 7 (Gold) Men	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Reds 7	18	15	3	0	71	14	57	48	89
WASPS 5	18	12	4	2	48	17	31	4	74
UWA 6	18	9	3	6	39	24	15	30	56
Melville 5	18	7	6	5	42	36	6	27	50
Kalamunda 2	18	7	3	8	38	41	-3	24	44
Curtin University 4	18	8	0	10	34	37	-3	24	44
Fremantle Cockburn 5	18	6	4	8	24	27	-3	22	41
Rockingham 3	18	5	2	9	24	50	-26	17	31
Modernians 4	18	4	2	11	21	54	-33	14	26
Southern River 2	18	2	3	13	23	64	-41	9	17

Division 8 (Gold) Men	<u>P</u>	W	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Reds 5	18	14	1	3	53	10	43	43	80
Rockingham 4	18	12	3	3	57	27	30	39	72
Curtin University 5	18	12	1	5	46	24	22	37	69
Melville 6	18	10	0	8	38	23	15	30	56
Willeton Reds 2	18	9	2	7	35	27	8	29	54
Southern River 3	18	7	5	6	32	32	0	26	48
Vic Park 5	18	8	0	10	35	44	-9	24	44
Canning	18	6	1	11	19	37	-18	19	35
Kalamunda 3	18	3	3	12	18	50	-32	12	22
Fremantle Cockburn 6	18	0	2	15	12	71	-59	2	4



Division 9 (Gold) Men	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Rockingham 5	18	15	2	1	54	12	42	47	87
Melville 7	18	12	4	2	63	18	45	40	74
UWA 9	18	12	4	2	47	18	29	40	74
Fremantle Cockburn 7	18	9	4	5	41	22	19	31	57
Kwinana Tigers	18	7	4	7	43	45	-2	25	46
Southern River 4	18	5	3	10	27	47	-20	18	33
WASPS 6	18	5	2	11	27	52	-25	17	31
Vic Park 6	18	4	4	10	26	44	-18	16	30
Curtin University 6	18	4	3	11	21	38	-17	15	28
Kalamunda 4	18	2	0	15	13	66	-53	6	11

O60 Division 1 Men	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Modernians 3	18	14	1	1	50	23	27	43	80
Vic Park 3	19	10	5	4	42	30	12	35	61
Reds 2	19	10	3	6	57	29	28	33	58
Melville 6	18	9	2	7	47	27	20	29	54
NC Raiders 3	18	3	2	11	29	62	-33	11	20
Curtin University	18	1	3	14	18	72	-54	6	11

Junior's League Tables

J 11/12 Div 3 (Gold) Girls	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Vic Park 2	14	12	1	1	52	15	37	37	88
Lions 2	14	8	3	3	48	23	25	27	64
Fremantle Cockburn	14	6	3	5	26	26	0	21	50
Reds 2	14	5	2	7	25	36	-11	17	40
Curtin University (Orange)	14	2	3	9	10	33	-23	9	21
WASPS 3	14	2	2	10	9	37	-28	8	19

J 9/10 Div 5 Girls	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Whitford 3	14	13	1	0	64	12	52	40	95
Westside Wolves 5	14	9	1	4	39	19	20	28	67
Hale 4	14	7	1	6	35	30	5	22	52
Newman Knights	14	7	0	7	32	24	8	21	50
Fremantle Cockburn 2	10	1	1	8	13	50	-37	4	13
Curtin University	14	1	0	13	6	54	-48	3	7

<u> J 7/8 Div 5 Girls</u>	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Joondalup Lakers 2	14	12	1	1	33	10	23	37	88
Westside Wolves 5	13	10	1	2	48	14	34	31	79
Ellenbrook Falcons	13	9	0	4	39	16	23	27	69
Whitford 3	13	5	3	5	19	19	0	18	46
Melville 4	13	3	3	7	12	26	-14	12	31
Westside Wolves 6	13	3	3	7	9	34	-25	12	3
YMCC 4	9	1	2	6	5	20	-15	5	19
Curtin University	14	1	1	12	3	29	-26	4	10



<u>J 5/6 Div 4 Girls</u>	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>	<u>P%</u>
Blades	14	10	3	1	38	7	31	33	79
Wolves/YMCC	14	7	6	1	29	6	23	27	64
Westside Wolves 3	14	7	6	1	18	4	14	27	64
Modernians 2	14	7	2	5	24	13	11	23	55
UWA 4	14	5	5	4	10	12	-2	20	48
Curtin University	14	3	2	9	4	26	-22	11	26
Newman Knights 2	14	1	6	7	1	20	-19	9	21
Melville 3	14	0	2	12	0	36	-36	2	5

J 5/6 Div 5 Boys	<u>P</u>	W	D	<u>L</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS	<u>P%</u>
Modernians 2	11	9	1	1	41	5	36	28	85
Whitford 3	8	5	2	1	15	3	12	17	71
Joondalup Lakers	11	7	1	3	25	8	17	22	67
Ellenbrook Falcons	12	6	1	5	15	16	-1	19	53
Dale	11	4	4	3	20	13	7	16	48
Kalamunda 2	11	1	1	8	8	37	-29	4	12
Curtin University	12	0	2	6	1	43	-42	2	6
Melville 3	14	0	2	12	0	36	-36	2	5

Minkey

Minkey teams do not keep points tables.